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509,765.42 10.99
303,007.51 6.53
280,550.22 6.05
136,877.23 2.95
4,359,124.13 93.99
278,881.56 6.01
4,638,005.69
( 657,808,347 100.00
2023 12
()

355,155,793 67.46
57,862,114 10.99
34,393,574 6.53
31,844,507 6.05
15,536,569 2.95

494,792,557 93.99
31,655,105 6.01

526,447,662 100.00
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2023 12
AZZURRO RE I 8.745
2027/1/5 2,500 | 113.18 282,937.62| 110.42] 276,055.15
05JAN27 144A FRN
ORANGE CAPIT 7.355
2025/1/17 | 2,500 | 113.72] 284,295.45 108.37| 270,913.02
17JAN25 144A FRN
CATAHOULA 11 R 0.0
2025/6/16 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00| 103.68 259,196.75
16JUN25 144A FRN
PURPLE RE LTD 0.0
2026/6/5 2,500 | 100.00f 250,000.00f 102.24] 255,606.11
05JUN26 144A FRN
MERNA RE 11 LT 0.0
2030/7/7 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 101.50] 253,737.50)
07JUL30 144A FRN
ALAMO RE LTD 0.0
2028/6/7 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 101.43] 253,574.97,
07JUN28 144A FRN
FIRST COAST RE 9.0
2026/4/7 2,500 | 100.00f 250,000.00f 101.40] 253,500.00;
07APR26 144A FRN
URSA RE LTD 0.0
2025/12/6 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 100.50| 251,262.49
06DEC25 144A FRN
MERNA RE 11 LT 0.0
2025/7/7 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 100.44] 251,087.50
07JUL25 144A FRN
URSA RE LTD 0.0
10 2026/12/7 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 100.22f 250,550.00
07DEC26 144A FRN
BLUE HALO RE L 0.0
11 2025/2/24 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00| 100.15 250,368.74
24FEB25 144A FRN
FOUR LAKES RE 0.0
12 2027/1/5 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 99.88 249,700.00;
05JAN27 144A FRN
SIERRA LTD 0.0
13 2025/1/31 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 99.77| 249,423.46
31JAN25 144A FRN
HERBIE RE LTD 0.0
14 2025/1/8 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 99.56] 248,893.78
08JAN25 144A FRN
MONA LISA RE L 0.0
15 2028/7/10 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 99.30| 248,256.37
10JUL28 144A FRN
CAPE LOOKOUT R 0.0
16 2029/3/28 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 99.10| 247,756.26
28MAR29 144A FRN
TORREY PINES R 0.0
17 2029/6/7 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 98.89] 247,233.08
07JUN29 144A FRN
SUSSEX CAP UK 0.0
18 2028/1/8 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 98.83] 247,081.29
08JAN28 144A FRN
LOGISTICS RE L 0.0
19 2024/12/20 | 2,500 97.71 244,263.73] 98.59 246,478.40]
20DEC24 144A FRN
KILIMANJARO 11 0.0
20 2028/4/21 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 98.31 245,762.53
21APR28 144A FRN
VITALITY RE XI 0.0
21 2026/1/6 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 98.05 245,136.48
06JAN26 144A FRN
TAILWIND RE LT 0.0
22 20287477 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 97.62] 244,057.41
07APR28 144A FRN
FLOODSMART RE 0.0
23 2025/2/25 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 97.54] 243,839.24
25FEB25 144A FRN
TITANIA RE LTD 0.0
24 2024/12/27 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 96.81 242,030.84
27DEC24 144A FRN
RESIDENTIAL RE 0.0
25 2028/12/6 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 96.05 240,136.04
06DEC28 144A FRN
KILIMANJARO 11 0.0
26 2029/4/20 | 2,500 | 100.33] 250,833.44 95.65 239,115.94

20APR29 144A FRN
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SANDERS RE 111 0.0

27 2029/4/9 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00] 94.95 237,374.39] 2.8
09APR29 144A FRN
BONANZA RE LTD 0.0

28 2024/12/23 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 94.31 235,775.93] 2.8
23DEC24 144A FRN
HESTIA RE LTD 0.0

29 2025/4/22 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00f 90.25 225,631.71 2.7
22APR25 144A FRN
RESIDENTIAL RE 0.0

30 2029/6/26 | 2,500 | 100.00] 250,000.00| 88.55| 221,364.47| 2.6

26JUN29 144A FRN

2023 12

2023 12
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2023 2023 12
32,797,257.03 4,651,634.96 9.98 1,415
2018
23,355,259.10 3,312,476.40 10.07 1,428
2019
11,052,438.52 1,567,567.36 10.41 1,476
2020
8,307,058.10 1,178,190.05 10.56 1,498
2021
5,134,655.55 728,248.20 10.61 1,505
2022
4,804,350.22 681,400.99 10.58 1,501
2023
2023 4,670,305.30 662,389.40 10.06 1,427
2023 4,731,311.83 671,041.96 10.19 1,445
2023 4,462,873.05 632,969.28 9.83 1,394
2023 4,508,745.99 639,475.44 9.93 1,408
2023 4,624,224.96 655,853.83 10.18 1,444
2023 4,703,829.03 667,144.07 10.36 1,469
2023 4,734,726.50 671,526.26 10.42 1,478
2023 4,804,350.22 681,400.99 10.58 1,501
2023 4,509,814.16 639,626.94 9.93 1,408
2023 10 4,572,783.48 648,557.88 10.07 1,428
2023 11 4,624,348.18 655,871.30 10.18 1,444
2023 12 4,638,005.69 657,808.35 10.21 1,448
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2,674,545,379 9,780

2018
2,119,499,313 9,626

2019
1,807,585,704 9,825

2020
1,174,108,653 10,158

2021
839,989,033 10,088

2022
639,708,440 10,017

2023
2023 651,631,716 9,408
2023 658,200,014 9,503
2023 657,646,346 9,514
2023 660,872,294 9,560
2023 674,713,606 9,778
2023 682,052,862 9,895
2023 634,679,834 9,923
2023 639,708,440 10,017
2023 563,115,814 9,560
2023 10 534,224,270 9,656
2023 11 537,533,191 9,716
2023 12 526,447,662 9,694
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2017 28 2018

0.07 9.93 20
2018 2019

0.05 7.09
2019 2020

0.30 42.55 80
2020 2021

0.35 49.64 330
2021 2022

0.68 96.44 148
2022 2023
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2017 28 2018 0.20 2.20

1.60 1.37
2018 2019

3.87 2.07
2019 2020

4.32 4.20
2020 2021

3.79 2.56
2021 2022

6.13 0.76
2022 2023

100x% +

2017 28 2017 12 29 2.70 2.94
2018 2018 12 31 2.57 0.29
2019 2019 12 31 4.43 1.40
2020 2020 12 31 3.00 2.25
2021 2021 12 31 4.17 3.84
2022 2022 12 31 3.80 6.82
2023 2023 12 31 16.84 11.63

100x +

2017
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3,287,246.637 0 3,287,246.637
3,287,246.637 0 3,287,246.637
2017 28
284,478.038 11,000.024 273,478.014
2018 31
284,478.038 11,000.024 273,478.014
79,622.471 1,046,908.446 2,319,960.662
pots 79,622.471 1,046,908.446 2,319,960.662
0 53,287.337 220,190.677
2019 31
0 53,287.337 220,190.677
17,869.393 1,281,074.577 1,056,755.478
po1s (17,869.393) | (1,281,074.577) | (1,056,755.478)
0 37,125.626 183,065.051
2020 31
0 (37,125.626) (183,065.051)
9,699.321 279,555.875 786,898.924
2020 9,699.321 279,555.875 786,898.924
0 67,484.648 115,580.403
2021 31
0 67,484.648 115,580.403
9,460.738 312,289.839 484,069.823
- 9,460.738 312,289.839 484,069.823
1
2,435.724 34,748.375 83,267.752
2022 31
2,435.724 34,748.375 83,267.752
0 29,852.442 454,217.381
0 29,852.442 454,217.381
2022
0 19,407.301 63,860.451
2023 31
0 19,407.301 63,860.451
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90

90

60

2022 10,000,000

2163 12
60
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22
38 59 131

23 103

2023 12 29
141.83
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CAT
2023 31
2023 31
2023 31 2022 31
usD usb
439,954 62,399 420,302 59,611
2023 USD 9,444,586
2022 USD 12,724,623 4,5,7 8,770,921 1,243,980 10,877,814 1,542,800
4,5 6,586 934 8,152 1,156
120,716 17,121 142,229 20,172
3,343 474
9,341,520 1,324,908 11,448,497 1,623,740
4,5 68,968 9,782 177,061 25,113
8 74,147 10,516 77,346 10,970
143,115 20,298 254,407 36,083
9,198,405 1,304,610 11,194,090 1,587,658
usD usb
JPY 639,708,440 839,989,033
usb 4,394,055 6,059,434
usb 4,804,350 681,400,961 5,134,656 728,248,260
7 63,860 83,268
7 454,217 484,070
usD usb
JPY 10,017 10,088
usb 11 1,560 11 1,560

2023 11 30
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CAT
2023 31
2023 31
2023 a1 2022 31
) usD
FVTPL
1
6 985,018 139,705 1,047,595 148,580
6 (136,743) (19,394) (253,871) (36,007)
6 (552,286) (78,331)  (1,851,481) (262,596)
295,989 41,980 (1,057,757) (150,022)
9,918 1,407 846 120
2 (887) (126) 15,869 2,251
305,020 43,261 (1,041,042) (147,651)
421 60
8 64,072 9,087 113,333 16,074
65,000 9,219 73,738 10,458
8 9,999 1,418 10,001 1,418
13,577 1,926 13,524 1,918
8 10,989 1,559 19,426 2,755
55,932 7,933 96,159 13,638
4,661 661 8,013 1,136
99,089 14,054 61,992 8,792
323,319 45,856 396,607 56,251
(18,299) (2,595)  (1,437,649) (203,902)
390,358 55,364 577,440 81,898
(408,657) (57,960)  (2,015,089) (285,800)
w FVTPL
FuTPL
@

701217



2023

2021

2022

2023

31

31

31

31
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CAT
2023 31
usD
18,994,375 2,693,972
280,090 39,725
(6,065, 286) (860,240)
(2,015,089) (285,800)
11,194,090 1,587,658
(1,587,028) (225,088)
(408,657) (57,960)
9,198,405 1,304,610




2023
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CAT
2023 31
31
2023 2022
usD usD

(408,657) (57,960) (2,015,089) (285,800)
(1,724,545) (244,592) (3,534,305) (501,270)
3,694,625 524,009 10,627,804 1,507,341
1,309,957 185,791 89,234 12,656
(1,173,214) (166,397) 164,637 23,350
(106,527) (15,109) 207,515 29,432
70 10 (39) ()
(3,343) 478) 3,343 474
(3,199) (454) 4,174) (592)
21,513 3,051 41,459 5,880
1,606,680 227,875 5,580,385 791,466
280,090 39,725
(1,587,028) (225,088) (6,065,286) (860, 240)
(1,587,028) (225,088) (5,785,196) (820,514)
/ 19,652 2,787 (204,811) (29,048)
420,302 59,611 625,113 88,660
439,954 62,399 420,302 59,611
996,049 141,270 1,092,368 154,931
(421) (60)
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CAT
2023 31
CAT
2013 12 2021 74
2013 12 2021
2017 15 2017 28
One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands
CAT
CAT
CAT CAT

CAT CAT

NDF

26

USA
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CAT
2023 31
CSC 2021 12
100
2022 11 CSC
UBS UBS 2023 19
FINMA

2023 12 UBS

IFRS
FVTPL
IFRS 10 IFRS 12 IAS 27 2012
2017 15
usb
usb usb

IFRS
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CAT

2023 31

2022

FVTPL

IFRS 9

FVTPL
FVTPL

SPP1
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CAT

2023 31

FVTPL
FVTPL

SPP1

FVTPL
FVTPL

FVTPL

SPP1

SPPI
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CAT

2023 31



FVTPL

FVTPL

FVTPL

FVTPL
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CAT

2023 31



CAT

Willis Towers Watson Securities

IFRS 9
ECL

2023 31 2022 31

IFRS 9

CAT
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CAT

2023 31

4

Swiss Re Capital Markets Aon Securities Inc.

GC Securities CAT

ECL

IFRS 9

79/217



FVTPL

FVTPL

FVTPL
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CAT

2023 31



50

FVTPL

IAS 32
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CAT

2023 31



CAT

CAT

CAT

CAT
CAT

SPV

usD

CAT

CAT

CAT

CAT
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CAT

2023 31

CAT

SPV

usD



JPY

CAT

CAT
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CAT

2023 31

JPY

CAT

CAT
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CAT
2023 31
2023 31 2022
31
2023 31
* USD
240,224 2 74
536,318 6.11
6,313,113 71.98
929,637 10.60
496,161 5.66
SNAT 255,468 2.91
8,770,921 100.00
* USD
247,497 2.28
500,299 4.60
8,163,945 75.05
1,227,524 11.28
738,549 6.79

10,877,814 100.00
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2023 31

2022 31
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4,214,762
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CAT
2023 31

usb
4,311,780 49.15
1,273,255 1452
240,539 2.74
491,670 5.61
2,453,677 27.98
8,770,921 100.00

usb
5,379,294 49.45
1,734,764 15.95
472,125 4.34
739,575 6.80
2,552,056 23.46
10,877,814 100.00

CAT

VaR 3,957,829 2022



2023

CAT

31

CAT

10

35
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CAT

2023 31
2023 31 usD usD usD usD usD usD
4,353,712 4,417,209 8,770,921
6,586 6,586
120,716 120,716
3,343 3,343
439,954 439,954
4,793,666 4,417,209 130,645 9,341,520
68,968 68,968
74,147 74,147
143,115 143,115
4,793,666 4,417,209 (12,470) 9,198,405
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CAT

2023 31
2022 31 usb usD usb usD usb usD
6,859,112 4,018,702 10,877,814
8,152 8,152
142,229 142,229
420,302 420,302
7,279,414 4,018,702 150,381 11,448,497
177,061 177,061
77,346 77,346
254,407 254,407
7,279,414 4,018,702 (104,026) 11,194,090
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2023
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CAT
2023 31
25
25bps 25bps
usD usD
(2,193) 2,193
25bps 25bps
usD usD
(,719) 2,719

0.1 2022 0.1



2023

2022

31

31
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CAT

31

31

JPY EUR

) USD UsD
21 532 553
536,318 536,318
5,359 5,359
21 542,209 542,230
4,405,589 (539,132) 3,866,457
4,405,611 3,077 4,408, 687
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2023
4,408,687

31

31

2022

220,434

6,039,948

2022
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CAT
2023 31
JPY EUR
UsD usD usD
490 109 599
500,299 500,299
2,547 2,547
490 502,955 503,445
6,039,773 (503,270) 5,536,503
6,040,263 (315) 6,039,948

301,997
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CAT

2023

31

31

2022

CAT

31

CAT
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CAT
2023 31
usb
439,954 Al
8,770,921 Al

6,586 Al



2023

31

CAT
CAT
CAT

CAT
CAT
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CAT
2023 31
usD
420,302 Al
10,877,814 Al
8,152 Al
CAT
CAT
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CAT

2023 31

2163 12

2022 10,000,000
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2023

2022

31

31

2023
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CAT
2023 31
31 2022 31 FVTPL
usD UsD UsD Usd
8,770,921 8,770,921
6,586 6,586
8,777,507 8,777,507
68,968 68,968
68,968 68,968
usD usD usD usD
10,877,814 10,877,814
8,152 8,152
10,885,966 10,885,966
(177,061) (177,061)
(177,061) (177,061)
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CAT

FVTPL

FVTPL

2022 31

2023 11 15
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CAT
2023 31
CAT
CAT
CAT
CAT
CAT
CAT
USD USD UsD
6,586 (68,968) (62,382)
6,586 (68,968) (62,382)
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CAT
2023 31
2022 31
USD USD USD
2022 11 14 2" 8152 (177,061) (168,909)
8,152 (177,061) (168,909)
"1
2023 31
USD USD
6,586 (539,132)
(68,968) 4,405,589
2022 31
USD USD
8,152 (503,270)

(177,061) 6,039,773
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CAT
2023 31
31
31
usD usD usD usD
6,586 6,586
6,586 6,586
USD USD USD usD
(68,968) 6,586 (62,382)
(68,968) 6,586 (62,382)
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CAT
2023 31
31
usD usD usD usD
8,152 (8,152)
8,152 (8,152)
USD USD USD usD
(177,061) 8,152 (168,909)
(177,061) 8,152 (168,909)
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FVTPL

FVTPL

2022

2023

2021

2022

31

31

31

31
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CAT

2023 31

2023 31 2022 31

UsD UsD
985,018 1,047,595
(1,309,957) (89,234)
1,173,214 (164,637)
(658,813) (1,643,966)
106,527 (207,515)
295,989 (1,057,757)
83,267.752 484,069.823

(19,407.301)

(29,852.442)

63,860.451 454,217.381
115,580.403 786,898.924

2,435.724 9,460.738
(34,748.375) (312,289.839)
83,267.752 484,069.823
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CAT
2023 31
10,000
100,000
1,000
10,000,000 1
10,000



2023 31
2022 577,440

0.12

19,426
2,769

5,000
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CAT
2023 31
390,358
10,989 2022
1,898 2022



0.70
64,072 2022
11,073 2022
0.50
45,766 2022 80,952
7,909 2022 11,537
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113,333
16,152

usD
2023
27,940
11,073
11,041

14,152
3,398
1,898
2,039
1,427
1,179

CAT

2023

10,000

31

UsD
2022
26,890
16,152
11,041

6,658
6,436
3,398
2,769
2,039
1,427

536

74,147

77,346
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CAT

2023 31

2023 31 2023 11 30
566,089 554,018

2023 11 30
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Statement of financial position
August 31, 2023

Tokio Marime CAT Bond Fund
Fimane iol statenients

Awgust 31, 2023

MNote  August 31, 2023 August 31, 2022

Assels LUSD LSD
Cash 439954 4200302
Investment in debt instruments, at fair value
(cost: 2023: USD9,444,586, 2022: USD12,724,623) 457 8,770,921 10,877,814
Derivative financial instruments, at fair value 4.5 6,586 8.152
Interest receivable 120,716 142,229
Other assets 3,343 -
Total assets 9.341,520 11448497
Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments, at fair value 4.5 68,968 177.061
Accrued expenses B 74,147 77.346
Total liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to the holders of
redeemable units) 143,115 254,407
Met assets attributable to the holders
of redeemable units 9 198,405 11,194,090
e ———— 1
Met assets attributable to;
JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class units (JPY) (639 708 440 839,989,033
JPY Semi- Annual Distribution Class units (USD) 4,394,085 6,059,434
USD Semi-Annual Digtribution Class units (USD) 4 804,350 5,134,656
—_—
Units outstanding:
JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class units 7 63,860 83,268
USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class units 7 454,217 484,070
Net asset value per unit:
JPY Semi- Annual Digtribution Class units (JPY) 10,017 10,088
USD Semi- Annual Distnibution Class units (USD) 11 11
_— e —0——————=
Approved on behalf of the Trustee on November 30, 2023,
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial siatements, 4
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Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended August 31, 2023

MNote
Revenue
et gain/(loss) from financial instruments at FVTPL'
Interest Income (]
et loss on mvestments in debt instments 6
et loss on mvestments in derivatives &
Interest on cash
et exchange (losshgain on foreign currency transactions’
Total revenue/(loss)
Interest expense
Investment manager fees g
Administration fees
Trustee fees 8
Custodian fees
Fee Agent Fees 8

Distribution fees

Agent member company fees
Ciher fees

Total operating expenses

Change in net assets atiributable to the holders
of redeemable units before distributions

Distributions to holders of redeemable units

Change in net assets attributable to the holders
of redeemable units after distributions

For the vear ended
August 31, 2023

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
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Tokin Maripe CAT Bond Fund

Filmaneial statements

Augnst 31, 2023

For the year ended
August 31, 2022

UsD UsD
985,018 1,047,595
{136,743) {253.871)
{552,286) (1,851.481)
295,989 (L057,757)
9918 846
(887) 15,869
305,020 (1.041,042)

. 421

64,072 113,333
65,000 73,738
9,999 10,001
13.577 13,524
10,989 19,426
55,932 96,159
4,661 8013
99,089 61,992
123319 396,607
(18,299) (1,437.649)
390,358 577,440
{408,657) (2,015,089}

I This relates to net income/loss from finarncial instruments measured & Feir Value Through Prafit or Loss
{(“FVTPL") including reclised and inrealised geirsdosses on financial assets and liabifties @@ FVTPL (et
sy on investments in debt instrume iy and pet loss on derivatives), and e rest income.

& This relates to reafived and urrealised gainfoss on foreign currencies, spot_joreign exchemge contracts

and receivables payables denomingted in foreign currencies,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial siatements, 5
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Tokio Marfme CAT Bond Fumnd

Fimane ind statenienls
Augnst 31, 2023

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable

units
For the vear ended Augnst 31, 2023
Total
UsD
Balance at August 31, 2021 18,994 375
Issue of units 280,090
Fepurchase of units (6,063, 286)
Change in net assets atributable to the holders of
redeemable units after distribution (2,015,089
Balance at August 31, 2022 11.19:4.090
lszue of units -
Repurchase of units (1,587,028)
Change in net assets atiributable to the holders of
redeemable units after distribution (408,657
Balance at August 31, 2023 9.1 98 405
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial siatements, f
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Statement of cash flows
For the year ended Aungust 31, 2023

Tokio Marime CAT Bond Fund
Fimane inl statenienls

Awgust 31, 2023

For the year ended For the year ended
August 31, 2023 August 31, 2022

UsD UsD

Operating aclivities
Change in net assets attributable to the holders of

redeemable units after distributions (408,657) (2,015,089)
Purchase of debt instruments (1,724,545) (3,534,305)
Proceeds from sale of debt instruments 3,694,625 10,627 804
Adjustment for items not involving cash:

Realized loss on debt instruments 1,309957 89,234

Unrealized {gain)/loss on debt mstruments {1,173.214) 164,637

MNet unrealized (gain)/loss on derivatives (106,527) 207,515

Amortization T0 (3
et changes in non-cash operating balances:

Other assets (3.343) 3,343

Acerued expenses (3,199 4,174}

Interest recervable 21,513 41,459
Met cash flows generated from operating

activities 1,606,680 5,580,385
Financing activities
Proceeds from units issued - 280,090
Repurchase of units (1,587,028) (0,005,286)
Cash Mows used in financing aclivities (1,587 028) (5,785.196)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash 19,652 (204,811
Cash at the beginning of the year 420,302 625,113
Cash at end of the year 439,954 420,302
Supplementary information on cash flows from

operating activities
Interest receved 996,049 1.092 368
Interest paid - (4210
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial siatemenis, 7
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Tokio Marime CAT Bond Fund
Fimane inl statenients

Awgust 31, 2023
Notes to financial statements

1 Domicile and activities

Tokio Maring CAT Bond Fund (the “Series Trust™) is a series-trust of Credit Snisse Universal
Trust (Cayman) I (the “Trust™). The Trust is an exempied unit trost registered wnder Section 74
of the Trusts Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman Islands on December 2, 2013 and registered
under the Mutual Funds Act (2021 Revision) of the Cayman [slands on December 2, 2013, The
Series Trust was established on Augunst 15, 2017 and commenced operations on September 28,
2017. The address of its registered office is One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-
90035, Cayman Islands,

The invesgment objective of the Series Trust is to seek to provide investors with income gains
through investing mainly in catagrophe bonds (“*CAT Bonds™). In addition. the Series Trust can
invest in insurance linked securities other than CAT Bonds, insurance derivatives linked bonds
and cash and money market secunties (together with CAT Bonds, the “debt instruments™ ). CAT
Bonds are debt instruments thal transfer the nsk of catadrophic events from entities such as
insurance comparies, reinsurance companies, corporations and governments to the capital
markets. Investors receive a risk premium in the form of a vield in exchange for bearing the risk
of losses from pre-defined natural and non-natural catastrophic events, such as earthquakes,
windstorms, mortality and other catastrophe related events. The principal amount of any given
CAT Bond will be potentially reduced (and subject to partial or, in some cases, total loss) upon
the occurrence of an event to which the CAT Bond 1s contractually linked.

It iz expected that the assets of the Series Trust will mainly be denominated in {but not limited to)
currencies such as US Dollars and Euro. Where practicable, the Investment Manager seeks to
hedge the currency exposure of assets attributable 1o a Class and denominated in currencies other
than the currency of denomination of that Class with the currency of denomination of that Class,
The Investment Manager generally can use spot contracts, forward foreign exchange contracts
and non-deliverable forwards {including cross forward foreign exchange contracts) (together, the
“Currency Forwards" ) in order to attempt to hedge against currency fluctuations.

The Series Trust has 2 classes of umits: USD Semi-Annual Dastrbution Class Units (denominated
in US Dollar), and JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units (denominated in Japanese Yen)
{each a “Class"), as defined in Appendix 26 of the Offering Memorandum relating to the Trust.

Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited, a company incorporated under the Companies Act
(as amended) of the Cayman Islands, has been appointed as the Trust’s manager, (the “Manager™)
under the Trust Deed. The Manager is responsible for investing the assets of the Trust and has the
power Lo issue units in different classes and'or series and to repurchase units. The Manager has
delegated all the rights, obligations, privileges, powers, duties, trusts and discretions vested in the
Manager by the terms of the Trust Deed with respect to the investment, management and re-
investment of the assets of the Series Trust and responsibility for the discretionary day-to-day
mvestment decision-making over the portfolio of debt instruments {the "Sub-Advised Portfolio”)
and the management of the Currency Forwards to Tokio Marine Asset Management Co., Ltd. (the
“Investment Manager” ). The Investment Manager has in tum delegated responsibility for the day-
to-day investment decision making over the Sub-Advised Porifolio to Tokio Marine Asset
Management (USA) Lud., (the " Sub-Investment Manager™ ).
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Tokio Marime CAT Bond Fund
Fimane inl statenients

Awgust 31, 2023
MNotes to financial statements (continued)
1 Domicile and activities (continued)

Credit Suisse International (the “Fee Agent™) is responsible for payving certain ongoing and
operational costs and expenses of the Series Tmst, including manager fee, anditing costs that are
not included in the audit fees and expense, anmal fees payable in respect of the Series Trst or
the Series Trust to government bodies and agencies, and insurance costs (if any) (the * Ordinary
Costs"}

The Series Trust's trastee 18 Elian Trostee (Cayman) Limited (the * Trustee™) and adminstrator is
The Bank of Wew York Mellon, Singapore Branch (the " Admimistrator™ ).

Cn December 6, 2021, Corporation Service Company ("CSC"} armounced that a conditional
agreement had been reached on a recommended public offer for all issued and outstanding
ordinary shares of Intertrust Group of which the Trustee is a wholly owned subsidiary. On
MWovember 7, 2022, C3C closed on its acquisition of Intertrust Group.

Cm March 19, 2023, UBS Group AG (“UBS" ) agreed to acquire Credit Suisse Group AG (“Credit
Suisse"} following intervention by the Swiss Federal Depanment of Finance, the Swiss National
Bank and the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA) On June 12, 2023, UBS
has completed the takeover of Credit Suisse.

All references to net assets throughout this document refer to net assets attributable to the holders
of redeemable units unless otherwise stated.

2 Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting
Standards (* FRS").

fa) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial
instruments at FYVTPL, which are measured af fair value.

The Series Trust has adopted Investment Entities {Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and [AS
271 (2012 (the amendments) with a date of initial application of August 15, 2017 (date of
establishment). Management concluded that the Series Trust meets the definition of an
investment entity.

b} Functional and presentation currency
The functional and presentation currency of the financial statements is the United States
Dwollar (“USD™) which reflects the fact that the Series Trust's operations, reporing to
unitholder as well as settlement of the majority of fees and expenses are carried out in USD,
fe) LUse of estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with [FRS requires the Series Trust's
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of

policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates,
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Tokio Marime CAT Bond Fund
Fimane inl statenients

Awgust 31, 2023
MNotes to financial statements (continued)
2 Basis of preparation (continued)

fo)  Use of estimates and judgements {contimaed)
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in

applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the financial statements are described in Notes 4 and 5.

fd} New standards and imterpretations not vet adopired
A mumber of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods
beginning after September 1, 2022 and earlier application is permitted; however, the Series
Trust has not early applied these new or amended standards in preparing these financial
statements as they do not have a material effect on the Series Trust’s financial statements.

3 Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently by the Series
Trust.

fa) Financial assers and finaneial Wabilities
i} Recopnition
Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL are recognised imitially on the trade date m
which the Series Trust becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Other financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the date they are originated.

Financial liabilities are not recognised unless one of the parties has performed or the
contract is a derivative contract not exempted from the scope of IFRS 9.

(i} Classification
Classification of financial assets
Om initial recognition, the Series Trust classifies financial assets as measured at amortised
cost or FVTPL. A financial asset is measured al amontised cost if it meets both of the
following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

1} It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows, and,

i1) Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
represent payments of principal and interest { SPPI),

10
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Tokio Marime CAT Bond Fund
Fimane inl statenients

Awgust 31, 2023
MNotes to financial statements (continued)
3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

fal Financial assets and financial labilities (contimeed}
(i} Classification {continued)

Classification of financial assets {continued,

All other financial assets of the Series Trust are measured at FVTPL. A financial asset is
measured at FVTPL if any of the following apply:

i) Its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are SPPI on
the principal amount onistanding;

i) It is not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contraciual
cash flows, or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell;

iii) At initial recognition. it is imevocably designated as measured at FVTPL when doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the
gains and losses on them on different bases,

In assessing whether the contraciual cash flows are SPPL the Series Trust considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
fAows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Series
Trust considers:

= contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- leverage features;
- prepayment and extension features,

- terms that limit the Fund’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-
recourse featuresy; and

- features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of
interes rates).

The Series Trust has determined that it has two business models:

- Held-to-collect business model: this includes cash, interest receivable and other
aszels, These Onancial assels are held to collect contractual cash flows,

11
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Tokin Maripe CAT Bond Fund

Filmaneial statements

Augnst 31, 2023

MNotes to financial statements (continued)

3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

fal Financial asseis and financial labilities (contimeed)

(i} Classification {continued)

Classification of financial assets {continued,

Other business model: this inclodes investment in debt instruments and derivative
financial instruments. These financial assets are managed and their performance is
evaluated. on a fair value basis, with frequent sales taking place.

In making an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset
iz held, the Series Trust considers all of the relevant information abowt how the business
is managed, including:

the documented investment strategy and the execution of this strategy in practice.
This includes whether the investment strategy focuses on eaming contractial interest
income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or
realising cash flows through the sale of the assets,

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Series Trust's
management;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets
held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

how the investment manager is compensated: e.g. whether compensation is based on
the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected: and

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assels in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third pamies in tramsactions that do not qualify for
derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Series Trust’s

contitming recognition of the assets.
The Series Trust classified financial assets into the following categories:

Financial assets designated at FVTPL
o Investment in debt instruments
o Denvative financial instruments

Financial as=ets at amortised cost

o Cash, interest receivable and other assets, These are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in the current

market.

12
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Tokin Maripe CAT Bond Fund

Filmaneial statements

Augnst 31, 2023

MNotes to financial statements (continued)
3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
fal Financial assets and financial labilities (contimsed)
{1} Classification (contimed)
Classification of financial liabilities
The Series Trust classified financial liabilities into the following categories:

= Financial liabilities at held-for<rading
o Derivative financial instruments

= Financial liabilines at amortised cost
o Accmed expenses

{ifE Measure meni

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured imitially at fair valoe,
with transaction costs recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, Financial
assets and financial liabilities not at FYTPL are measured initially at fair value plus
ransaction costs that are directly attributable Lo its acquisition or issue.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities classified at
FVTPL are measured at fair value with changes in their fair value recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets and liabilities other than those at FVTPL are camried at amortised cost
using the effective inderest rate method, less impairment losses, if any. This is considered
to approximate fair value due to the short-term or immediate namre of these instrumenis,

“Fair value” is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
When available, the Series Trust measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted
prices in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available and represent actual and regularly occurmring
markel transactions on an arm’s length basis. If a market for a financial instrument is not
active, the Series Trust establishes fair value using a valuation technique agreed by the
Trustee. Valuation techmiques include using recent arm’s length transactions between
knowledgeable, willing parties (if available), reference to the current fair value of other
instruments that are substantially the same and other pricing models. Alternatively the fair
value may be determined using reputable pricing sources (such as pricing agencies) or
indicative prices from bond/debt market makers. Broker quotes as obtained from the
pricing sources may be indicative and not executable or binding, The Series Trust would
exercise judgment and estimates on the quantity and quality of pricing sources nsed.
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Augnst 31, 2023

MNotes to financial statements (continued)
3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

fal Financial assets and financial labilities (contimeed)
{15} Measurement {continue d)

Realised gains or losses on sale of debt instruments are calculated using the weighted
average cost method, The unrealised gains or losses represent the difference between the
carrying amount of a financial instroment at the beginning of the reporting period or
transaction price when purchased and its carrying amount a8 the end of the period.
Realised and unrealised gains or losses on investments are recorded in the statement of
comprehensive income.

{ivi Tivestment in debt instraments

The Series Trust holds investments in CAT Bonds whose prices are governed by a
specific pricing methodology following the Series Trust's offering documents, The CAT
Bonds' valuation is based solely on the prices received from 4 brokers: Swiss Re Capital
Markets, Aon Securities Inc, Willis Towers Watson Securities and GC Securities. The
CAT Bonds price is calculated based on the available brokers' average mid-price, which
i5 derived by averaging their bid and ask prices. In the case where the total divergence of
average ask price and average bid price against average mid-price equals or exceeds 5%,
such bond will be valued using the average bid price.

(v} Investment in devivative financial instrumenis
The Series Trust holds investments in derivative financial instriments in the form of
currency forward contracts. The fair value of the cumency forward contracts is the
exchange difference between the contract rate and the applicable forward rate.

{vit Impairmernt

IFE.S 9 requires the Series Trust to recognise loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses
(ECL) on financial assets measured at amortised cost.

As at August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022, the Series Trust held cash interest
receivable amnd other assets as financial assets measured af amortised cost, which 15 not

under the scope of ECL model. Hence, the applicable of IFRS 9's impaimment
requirement has no significant impact on the Series Trust's financial statements,

fwii} Derecognition
The Series Trust derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the Gnancial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer
qualifies for derecognition in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9.

The Series Trust derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired.
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MNotes to financial statements (continued)
3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

b Cash

Cash compnse amounts with onginal maturities of three months or less deposited into carrent
accounts held at an intemational financial institution.

fe) Effsetting finaneial instruntenis

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
staternent of financial position when, and only when, the Series Trust has a legal right to set
off the recognised amounts and it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultanecusly, The format adopted in these financial statements is to
present the gross amounts of the financial assets and financial labilities in the statement of
financial position, while the offsetting and net amount of the financial assets and financial
liabilities are presented under Nove 5 — Offserting financial assets and finene fal Habilities.

el Ensettled trades veceivable

Unsettled trades receivable represent amounts receivable for investments sold but not vet
settled on the statement of financial position date,

fe} Expenses

All operating expenses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on an

accrual basis,
i} Frterest on cash

Interest on cash is recognised on a time-proportionate basis using the effective interest
method.

g} Net income/loss from financial instrunents at FVTPL

Met income from financial instruments at FVTPL includes net (lossygain on investments in
debt instruments, net {loss)ygain on derivative financial instruments and interest income,
which are disclosed separately in the statement of comprehensive income. Net realised gain or
loss from finaneial instruments al FVTPL is calculated using the weighted average cost
method,

Met (loss)gain on investments in debt instroments comprises of all realised and unrealised
fair value changes. The realised gain or loss from financial instruments at FVTPL represents

the difference between the cost of a financial instruments and its settlement price of the sale
trade.
The unrealised gain or loss represents the difference between the carrying amount of a

financial instrament at the beginning of the period, or the transaction price if' it was pwchased
in the current reporting period and its carrying amount at the end of the reporting period.
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MNotes to financial statements (continued)
3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

fgl Net income/loss from financial instruments at FVTPL {continwed)

Investments and other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
imte US Dollar amounts at the date of valuation. Purchases and sales of securities and income
and expense items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into US Dellar amounts
on the respective dates of such transactions,

Reported net realised foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from changes in foreign
exchange rates on investments and from other transactions denominated in foreign curmencies
are included in the net gain or loss on investments and net exchange gain or loss on foreign
curency transactions, respectively, in the statement of comprehensive income,

th) Net asseis attiibutable 1o the holders of redee mable units

The Trustee stands possessed of the assets of the Series Trust in a trust fund for the Series
Trust's witholders subject to the provisions of the Master Trust Deed and the Appendix. The
Series Trust classifies financial instruments issued as financial labilities or equity instruments
in accordance with the substance of the contractual terms of the instraments. The Series Trust
has two classes of redeemable units in issue, These are the most subordinate classes of
financial instruments of the Series Trust and the units rank pan passu in all material respects.
The two classes have identical terms and conditions other than currency of denomination, the
porifolio assets, distribution rates and minimum issue size. The redeemable units provide the
unitholders with the right to require repurchase for cash at a value proportionate to the
unitholders® share in the Series Trust’s net assets al each repurchase date and also in the event
ofthe Senes Trust's liquidation.

Due to the differing features of each class of financial instrument, the Seres Tmst's
redeemable units are classified as financial liabilities in accordance with IAS 32, This liability
is measured at the amount which the Series Trust is obligated to pay upon repurchase, which
is based on the trading net asset value calcnlated in accordance with the Series Trust's
offering documents.

{i} Net asset value per uni

The net asset value per unit 15 caleulated in accordance with the Master Trust Deed by
dividing the Series Tmst's net assets attributable to the holders of the redeemable units in
each class by the number of outstanding units in each class,

(i} Teration

The Series Trust is exempt from paying taxes on its income, profits or capital gain in the
Cayman Islands. The Series Trust has received an undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet
of the Cayman Islands exemping it from all local income, profit and capital taxes for a period
of 50 vears from the date of establishment of the Tmst. Accordingly, no provision for income
taxes iz included in these financial statements.

ik} Distribuiions

Distributions made to qualifying unitholders are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income on an accrual basis.
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MNotes to financial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management

The Senes Tust's invesiment porifolio comprises of investment in CAT Bonds, other insurance
linked secumties and Currency Forwards. The Series Trust's investing activities expose it to
varions (ypes of risk that are associated with the financial instruments and markets in whach it
invests. The most importamnt types of financial risks to which the Series Trust are exposed to are
market tisk credit risk and liquidity risk. The nature and extent of the financial instruments
outstanding at the statement of financial position date and the nsk management policies emploved
by the Series Trust are discussed below:

fal Market risk

Market risk embodies the potential for both losses and gains and includes price risk, currency
risk and interest rate risk.

The Senies Trust's strategy on the management of investment nisk is drven by its investment
objective and invesimeni restrictions stated out in its offering documenis. The Series Trust
seeks to provide investors with income gains through investing mainly in CAT Bonds
amongst ofher insurance linked securities. In selecting the Series Trust's pontfolio of
imvestments, the Sub-Investment Manager takes into account the following factors:

* [is analysis of CAT Bonds and the related markets {including, without limitation, the trend
of CAT Bonds, the reinsurance market and investment trends in that sector);

= The sk chamctenzation (including, without limitation, eanhquake and humicane) of each
CAT Bond; and

+ The region and spread level of each CAT Bond.

In addition to the above factors, the Sub-Investment Manager, as far as possible, manages the
debt instruments o as not to invest in CAT Bonds having Japanese relevant risk

The Sub-Invesiment Manager seeks to diversify the type of penils or the geographical focus of
the CAT Bonds it invests in for the account of the Seres Trust taking into account the type of
perils and/or the geographical focus of overall market of the CAT Bomds. The CAT Bonds to
which the Series Trust may gain exposure through direct investment are generally
unleveraged structured notes which are issued by special purpose vehicles (“SPV™). The
relevant SPV assumes the risk of occurrence of defined events and fully funds its exposure to
such risks through the issue of CAT Bonds to collateralize and directly pass on the risk
generated from entering into risk transfer contracts with a sponsor.

The Investment Manager seeks to hedge foreign exchange rate risk for Unitholders by
entering into the following Cwrrency Forwards:

* In relation to the USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units, the Investment Manager
implements a stralegy designed to hedge the USD Semi-Ammal Digribution Class Units'
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations between USD (in which the USD Semi- Anmaal
Distribution Class Units are denominated) and currencies other than USD.
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MNotes to financial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management (continued)
fad Market risk (contineed)

* In relation to the JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units, the Investment Manager
implements a strategy designed to hedze the JPY Semi-Anmual Distribution Class Units'
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations between JPY (in which the JPY Semi-Anmual
Distribution Class Units are denominated) and currencies other than JPY,

The Sub-Investment Manager tracks the difference of the CAT Bonds' risk characteristics
against a reference index on a monthly basis. The benchmark index that the Sub-Investment
Manager uses is Swiss Re Global Cat Bond Performance Index Total Retum.

The Sub-Investment Manager manages the investments of the Series Trust in accordance with
the mvestment objectives and strategies of the Series Trust, making sure that necessary and
economically rational steps are taken to prevent the Series Trust's assets from being used or
invested in violation of the investment restrictions of the Series Trust. The Investment
Manager carries out investment management activities in accordance with internally prepared
and peniodically updated imvestment guidelines, The Manager advises the Trustee of any
inmvestment management decisions or other investment management activities required as a
result of oocurrences or circumstances outside of the ordinary conrse of business.

iy Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the investment will fluctuate as a result of changes
in market prices, whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment or its
issuer or factors affecting all instrument s traded in the market.

As the Series Trust's investments are carted al fur value with far value changes
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, all changes in market conditions
will directly affect the net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable units and
change in net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable units,

The Series Trust's investments, which are mainly CAT Bonds, are issued as floating rate
securities, in which the investor receives a set coupon spread over an index (or return on
high-quality collateral, which is typically invested in shost-term money market funds).
The index {or collateral retum) resets periodically based on the prevailing shom-term
interest rates, CAT Bonds' price is inversely related to the spread achieved by investors,
which is a function of modelled expected loss and other market factors, such as penl zone,
perceptions of risk, market trends, economic turmoil, etc.
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MNotes to financial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management {continued)
fa) Market risk {contimed)

it Price risk {contimed)

The following table sets out the concentration of debt instruments held by the Series Trust
as at August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022,

August 31, 2023

Market Value % Holdings
Country* UsD
United Kingdom 240,224 274
[reland 536318 6.11
Bermuda 6,313,113 T1.98
Cayman [slands 0929 637 10,60
Singapare 496,161 5.66
SNAT (The World Bank Group) 255,468 291
Total 8,770.921 100.00

® The country classification is based on country of incorporation.

August 3, 2022

Market Value %o Holdings
Country* UsD
United Kingdom 247497 2.28
Ireland 500,299 460
Bermuda 8.163,945 7508
Cayman Islands 1,227,524 11.28
Singapore 738,549 6.79
Tetal 10,877,814 100.00

" The country classification is based on country of incorporation.
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MNotes to financial statements (continued)

4 Financial risk management (continued)
fa) Market risk {contimed)
it Price risk {contimed)

In general, there is a concentration of specific catastrophe risks in specific regions such as
hurricanes in the United States, which represents a high portion of the overall risk of CAT
Bonds, Therefore, in the case of occurrence of these events, the price of these CAT Bonds

may sigmficantly decrease and the Senes Trust may significantly incur losses,

The Series Trud's investments are concenirated in the following perils:

August 31, 2023

Market value % Holdings
Peril UsD
Multi-peri 4,311,780 49.15
Earthquake 1,273,255 14.52
Flood 240,539 274
Pandemic 491,670 3.61
Wind 2453677 2798
Total 8.770,921 100.00
August 31, 2022

Market value %o Holdings
Peril UsD
Multi-peri] 5,379,294 4945
Earthquake 1,734,764 15.95
Flood 472,125 434
Pandemic 739,575 6.80
Wind 2,352,036 23.46
Total 10,877,814 100.00

The Series Trust mainly invesis in CAT Bonds in accordance with the invesiment policy
of the Series Trust. The nsk management framework that the Sub-Investment Manager
applies to the Series Tmst consists of three risk monitoring activities, which are (1) Daily
monitoring of any single CAT Bond's weightage not to exceed 10% of the latest net assel
value of the Series Tmst; (2) Daily monitoring of any single bond issuer's weightage not
to exceed 35% of the latest net asset value of the Semes Trust; and (3} Monthly
calculation of 19% anmeal Value at Risk indicator (VaR ),

As at Angust 31, 2023, the 1% anmual VaR of the Series Trust is USD 3,957,829
(2022 USD 4,214,762), which represents the maximwm loss at occumence probability
once every 100 years.
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MNotes to financial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management (continued)
fad Market risk (contineed)
{it  Price risk (contimeed)

In recent years, a concenmtration of sponsors (such as insurance comparies and
counterparties of re-insurance contracts) and issuers has developed in the CAT Bond. As
a result of such concentrated exposure, the Series Trust may incur greater losses than a
diversified fund which invests in a wider range of sectors and issuers as well as a result of
entire or partial losses of the principal of the CAT Bonds due to the occurrence of natural
catastrophes.

Mo debt instrument and issuer exceeded 10% mnd 33% respectively of the net assets
attributable to the holders of redeemable units at August 31, 2023 {2022: nil}.

{1i) Tnterest rate risk

The Series Trust’s interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities expose it to risks
associated with the effects of Muctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates
on its financial position and cash flows. In general, the interest rate risk of fixed income
securities is higher than floating income securities, Therefore, the value of fixed income
securities will be more subject to decline than that of floating income securities because
of rise of interest rates, As nominal interest rates rise, the value of the Series Trust is
likely to decrease. A nominal interest rate can be described as the sum of a real interest
rate and an expected inflation rate.

Fixed income securities and floating income securities with longer durations tend to be
more sensitive Lo changes in interest rates, usually making them more volatile than

securities with shorter durations,
In general, CAT Bonds are nsually issued as floating income securities, which are less
sensitive lo changes in interest rates, as the coupon is partially linked to changes in the

interest rate, However, the residuval maturities of the wunderlying money market
instruments generally cause some minor interest rate risk.
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MNotes to financial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management {continued)
fa) Market risk {contimed)
{1} Tnvervest vate risk {coniinued
Nom-
Less than 1 month - 1 wear - More than inlerest
August 31, 2023 Lmonth — Iwer Svears Syears hearing Total
usn Ush usD UsDh UsD UsD
Aszels
lnvestment in debt
instruments, o fair vahie 4353712 4,417,209 - - - 8770921
Derpvative financial -
instruments, & Far valuz < K ) ) 6,586 6,586
Interest receivable - - - - 1M,716 120,716
Other assats - - - - 3343 3,343
Cash 439954 . - - - 439954
Total assets 4,793 666 4417209 - - 130,645 9,341,520
Liabilities
Derpeative financial
instruments, af fair valug - - - - 68,968 63,968
Accrued expenses - . - - 74147 4,147
Total liabilites {excliding
ned assets atiributable (o - - - - 143115 143,115
the holders of red eemable
units)
Total interest
sensitivity gap 4,793,666 4417209 - = 12470y 9198405
22
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MNotes to financial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management {continued)
fa) Market risk {contimed)
{1} Tnverest rate risk {coniinued
Non-

Léss than 1 month - 1 vear - Mare than nberest

Augnst 31, 2022 usD UsD UsD Ush UsD ush
Aszels
lnvestment in debt

instruments, at fair value 6859112 4018702 . - - 10877814
Derpvative financial

ingruments, af fair value - - - - 3,152 8,152
Interest receivable - - = - 1427229 142,229
Amount dug from brokers - - - - - -
Cther assets - - . . . -
Cash 420,302 - . - - 420,302
Total assets 7279414 4018702 - - 150,381 11448497
Liabilities

Derivative financial

instruments, & fair valus z g 2 s Rl 117,00]
Unsettled trades payabls - - - - . -
Agcrued expenses - - - - 17,346 77,346
Total liabilites (excduding net
assets atiributable to the
haolders of redeam able units) - - - - 254 407 254407
Total interest

sensitivity gap 7279414 4,018.702 . - (104.026) 11,194,090
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MNotes to financial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management (continued)
fa) Market risk {contimed)
{1} Tnverest rate risk {coniinued
Intevest rale sensitivity analvsis
The volatility of interest rates movement for the current period is derived from a change

of 25 basis points (“bps”) in interest rates at the statement of financial position date. This
analysis assumes that all the other vanables remain constant.

Fifect on net assetsol a
Change in interest raies

25bps 25 bps
Increase Decrease
LSD LSD
August 31, 2023
Net impact to net asets attributable to unitholders (2,193) 2,193
Effect on net assetsof a
Change in interest rates
25bps 25 bps
Increase Decrease
USD USD
August 3, 2022
Net impact to net asets attributable to unitholders {2,719y 2,719

The duration for the debt instruments held as of August 31, 2023 is (.1 years {2022: 0.1
years).

The Series Trust's exposure to cash-flow interest raie nisk by financial assets and
liabilities comprises pnmarily of cash. which are held at variable short-term market
interest rates, The impact of changes in market interest rates on these balances is not
significant to the Series Trust.

{ifi} Crrrency risk

The Series Trost may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions
denominated in cwrencies other than its functional currency. Consequently, the Series
Trust is exposed to risks that the exchange rate of its functional currency relative to other
foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that
pottion of the Series Trust's assets or liabilities denominated in currencies including its
functional currency, US Dollar.
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August 31, 3023
MNotes to financial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management (continued)
fa) Market risk {contimed)
{iff) Crurvency risk (confinued)

The following table sets out the Series Trust's total exposure to foreign currency risk in
US Dollar equivalent at August 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022:

JPY EUR Total
August 31, 2023 usD uUsD LUsD
A mzets
Cash 21 532 553
Investment in debt instruments, at fair value - 536,318 536,318
Interest receivable - 5,359 5,359
Other assets i " =
Total assets 21 542,200 342,230
Liabilities
Accrued expenses - - -
Total liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to the holders of redeemable
units) - - -
Forward loreign exchange contracts 4,405 589 (539.132) 3,806,457
Total net exposure 4,405,611 3077 4408687

Amounts in the above tables are based on the carrying value of assets and liabilities and
the naticnal value of forward foreign exchange contracts,
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MNotes to financial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management {continued)
fa) Market risk {contimed)
fiff) Curvency risk (confinued)
JPY EUR Total
August 31, 2022 UsD UsD UsD
Assets
Cazh 490 109 39
Investment in debt instruments, at fair value - 500,209 500,259
Amount due from brokers -
Interest recervable - 2,547 2,547
Total assets 491 302,955 503,445
Liabilities
Accrued expenses = = B
Total liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to the holders of redeemable
umits) - - -
Forward loreign exchange contracts 6,039,773 (503,270) 5,536,503
Total net exposure 6,040,263 315 039,948

Amounts in the above tables are based on the camying value of assets and liabilities and
the notional value of forward foreign exchange contracts,

Sensitivity analvsis

The net exposure to foreign currency risk of the monetary assets and labilities at August
31, 2023 was USD 4,408,687 (2022: USD 6,039,948). At August 31, 2023, had the US
Dollar strengthened by 5% in relation to all currencies, with other variables held constant,
net assets atiributable to the holders of redeemable units and change in net assets
attributable to the holders of redeemable units per the statement of comprehensive income
would have decreased by USD 220,434 (2022: USD 301,997} A 5% weakening of the
US Dollar against the above currencies would have resulted in an equal but opposite
effect on the basis that all other variables remain constant.
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MNotes to financial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management (continued)

bl Credit risk

Credit risk is the nsk that counterparty 1o a fnancial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Senes Trust. The cammying amounts
of financial assets best represent the maximum credit risk exposure at the statement of
financial position date,

The CAT bonds in which the assets of the Series Trust are invested may be subject to the sk
that the principal or interest of such instruments may not be paid. Adverse changes in the
financial condition of the issuer may impair the ability of the issuer (o make payments of
interest and principal. The inability (or perceived inability) of issuers to make timely
payments of interest and principal may affect the value of securities held for the account of
the Series Trust.

In particular, the price of CAT Bonds may significantly decrease as a result of a CAT bond
issuer's defaults or the possibility of its defaults due to the cccurrence of natural catastrophes
and the spread of pestilence or exceeding trigger points defined in the bond's terms,

Credit risk is mitigated by undertaking transactions with an approved broker and other
reputable financial institutions. The Series Trust's financial assets are also held in costody
with established and approved counterparties. All transactions in listed securities are
seliled/paid for upon delivery using an approved broker. Pavment is made on a purchase once
the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fals to meet
its obligation. The Series Trust determines concentration risk in relation to exposure to
individnal counterparties,

Substantially all of the assets of the Series Trust are held by the Custodian. Bankruptey or
insolvency of the Custodian may cause the Series Trust's rights with respect (o investmenis
and cash and cash equivalents held by the Custodian to be delayed or limited. The Senes

Trust monitors its risk by monitoring the credit quality and financial positions of the
Custodian.

The table below summarises the Moody's credit rating of banks and custodians in which the
Series Trust’s assets are held as at Augnst 31, 2023 and August 31, 2022,

Angust 31, 2023
Fair Value Credit
USD Rating
Bank
The Bank of New York Mellon 439,954 Al
Cugtodian
The Bank of New York Mellon 8,770,921 Al
Counterparties of Financial Derivatives
The Bank of New York Mellon 6,586 Al
27
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MNotes to financial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management (continued)
b} Credit risk {continued)
August 31, 2022
Fair Value Credit
UsD Rating
Bank
The Bank of New York Mellon 420302 Al
Custodian
The Bank of New York Mellon 10,877 814 Al
Counterparties of Financial Derivatives
The Bank of New York Mellon 8152 Al

fe} Liquidity risk

Investment of the Series Trust’s assets in relatively illiquid securities may restrict the ability
of the Manager to dispose of the Series Trust's investmenis at a price and time that it wishes
to do so. Funthermore, resale of such investments may at times be limited by contractual
provisions, which may itself have an impact on the value of such investments. It 1s also
possible that an exchange may suspend trading in a particular instrument or contract, order
immediate liquidation and settlement of a particular instrument or contract or order that
trading in a particular instrument or contract be conducted for liquidation only. The risk of
illiquidity also arises in the case of aver-the-counter transactions. There may be no regulated
market in such instraments or contracts, and the bid and offer prices will likely be established
solely by dealers in these instruments or contracts. Investment in non-marketable securities
camies iqudity nsk. In addition, such secunties are difficult to value, and the issuers of such
securities are not always subject to the rules of a regulated market for the protection of
imvestors,

In general CAT Bonds have low liquidity and limited market participants and the market
price of CAT Bonds in the secondary market may be highly volatile. Therefore, the sale
prices of CAT Bonds may be significantly discounted to the preceding prices of these CAT
Bonds. Furthermore, some CAT Bonds may not have a secondary market and it may be
necessary to find buvers for these CAT Bonds in over-the-conmnter transactions. In such case,
the sale prices of CAT Bonds may be significantly discounted the preceding prices of these
CAT Bonds and, as a result, the Series Trust may significantly incur losses.

Furthermore, in case the Series Trust receives substantial subscriptions in a short period of
time and cannot identify sufficient CAT Bonds to invest in while complying with the
investment restrictions, the Series Trust may be required to temporanly hold substantial
amournt of cash. As a result, the Unitholders exposure to CAT Bonds will be diluted.

In addition, the Series Trust may suspend and/or cancel the repurchase and/or subscription of
units of any class of units in significant circumstances such as the occumence of significantly
catastrophes 1o be in the best interests of Unitholders.

Financial liabilities other than net assets attributable to the holders of redeemable units have
residual contractual matunties of less than three months.
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Augnst 31, 2023

MNotes to financial statements (continued)
4 Financial risk management (continued)
fdl Other risks
Velatility risk

The prices of derivative instmiments are highly volatile. Price movements of forward contracts,
are influenced by, among other things, interest rates, changing supply and demand
relationships, trade, fiscal. monetary and exchange control programmes and policies of
govemments, and national and international political and economic events and policies.

In addition, governments from time to time intervene, directly and by repulation, in certain
markets, particularly markets in currencies and interest rate related fotures and options. Such
intervention often is intended directly to influence prices and may, together with other factors,
cause all of such markeis to move rapidly in the same direction becanse of, among other
things, interest rate fluctuations.

Techniques and instrane nts risk

The use of techniques and instrumenis also involves certain special nisks, including (i)
dependence on the ability to predict movements in the prices of investments being hedged and
movements in interest rates, (ii} imperfect correlation between the hedging instruments and
the investments or market sectors being hedged, (iii) the fact that skills needed to use these
instruments are different from those needed to select investments, and (iv) possible
impediments to effective portfolio management or the ability to meet repurchase requests.

Early termination of the Series Trust

Although the final repurchase day of the Series Trust is scheduled for December 1, 2163, the
final repurchase day will be brought forward should a Compulsory Repurchase Event occur.

Unless the Series Trust is terminated in accordance with the provisions described in the
offering documents, the units will be compulsorily repurchased upon the first to oceur of any
ofthe following:

{1} The net asset value on any valuation day on or after 1 July 2022 is USD 10,000,000 or less,
and the Manager determines that all units should be compulsorily repurchased: or
{ii} The Trustee and the Manager agreeing that all of the wnits should be compulsorily
repurchased. {each a “Compulsory Repurchase Event™)
S Fair value measurements
The Series Trust classifies fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurement. The far value hierarchy has the
following levels:
e (uoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities {Level 1).

¢ Inputs other than quoted prices included within Lewvel 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) (Level 2).

+  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable
inputs) (Level 3),
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August 31, 2023
MNotes to financial statements (continued)
5 Fair value measurements (continued)

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measwrement is calegorised in its
entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of an inpul is assessed against the
fair value measurement in its entivety. If a fair value measurement uses observable inputs that
require significant adjustment based on uncbservable inputs, that measurement is a Level 3
measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its
entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constilmies ‘observable” requires significant judgment by the Series
Trust. The Series Trust considers observable data to be market data that is readily available,
regilarly distnbuted or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by
independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

Financial instruments measured af FYTPL

The table below summarizes the financial nstruments measured at FVTPL at August 31, 2023
and August 31, 2022 by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurement is categorised

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 August 2023 UspD usD UsD usD
Financial asset at fair value
through prafit or loss
Investments in debt instruments - 8770921 - B7T0921
Derivative financial instruments - 6,586 - i, 586
- §I77.507 - 8777507
Financial Gabilities e fairvalue
thraugh prafit or loss
Derivative financial instruments . 68968 . 68,968
. 68,968 - 68.968
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 August 2022 UsD UsD UsD UsD
Financial asset af fair value
through prafit or loss
Investments in debt instruments - 10,877,814 - 10,877,814
Derivative financial instruments . 8152 . 8152
- 10,885,966 - 10,885 966
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments - (177.061) - (177.061)
= (177.061) = (177.061)
30
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MNotes to financial statements (continued)
5 Fair value measurements (continued)

Financial instruments measared of FVTPL {continued)

Fimancial mstruments that trade in markets that are nol considered to be active but are valued
based on quoted market prices, dealer quotations or allernative pricing sources supported by
observable inputs are classified within level 2. These include investmenti in CAT Bonds and
currency forwards.

The investment in CAT Bonds is valued in accordance with the policies described in Mote 3{a){iv).
The price of the CAT Bonds is derived from the 4 brokers® bid and asks prices. These brokers are
main market makers in the CAT Bonds market, and they calculate their prices based on CAT
Bonds transaction prices that are available and open to the public, using their own pricing model,
If there is no transaction available, the brokers calculate the bond price from the market data of
similar bond. There is sufficient information available to measure fair values of the bonds based
on observable market inputs. However, il is possible that the estimated waluwes may differ
significantly from the amount that might ultimately be realised in the near term and the difference
conld be material.

Financial instraments not measured af FVTPL
The financial instruments not measured at FVTPL inelude:

(i) Cash, interest receivable, other aszeiz and accrued expenses. These are shon-term financial
assets and financial liabilities whose carmying amounts approximate fair value, because of
their shon-term nature.

(ii} MNet assets attributable to the holder of redeemable wmits, The Zeries Tmst routinely
repurchases and issues the redeemable units at the amount equal to the proportionate share of
net assets of the Series Trust at the time of repurchase, calculated on a basis consistent with
that vsed in these financial statements. Accordingly, the camying amount of net asseis
attributable 1o the holders of redeemable units approximates their fair value.

Derivative ffnancial instruments

The Seres Trust enters imto currency forward comtracts. A cumency forward contract is an
agreement belween two parties to buy or sell a cwrency at a specified price, at a specified
quantity and on a specified future date. At inceplion, there is no exchange of principal amounts
and the net receivable or payable position is settled on maturity. Currency forwards are used to
control and hedge foreign exchange risk attdbmable to JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class and
USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class,

The following cwmrency forward contracts were owtstanding at the reporting date:

Augnst 31, 2023
Mo. of Receivable Payable  Fair value (net)
Maturity date contracts usp UsD usD
Movember 15, 2023 2 6,586 (68,968) i62,382)
Total 6,586 (68.968) (62.382)

*1 contract each for receivable and payable
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5 Fair value measurements (continued)
Derivative financial instraments (continged)
August 31, 2022
Mo, of Receivable Payable  Fair value (net)
Maturity date contracts UsD UsD usp
Movember 14, 2022 = 8152 (177,061} (168,909)
Total 8,152 (177,061) (168,909

*1 contract each for receivable and payable

The cwrrencies purchased and sold in the cumrency forward contracts included: United States
Dollar, Euro and Japanese Yen, which are in line with the investment objective of the Series Tmst.

The following table sets out the notional exposures on the currency forward contracts.

August 31, 2023 Fair value MNotional value
LSD LUSD

Derivative assets

Currency forward contracis 6,586 (539,132)

Derivative liabilities

Currency forward contrads (68,968) 4,405,589

August 31, 2022 Fair value MNotional value
UsD LUSD

Derivative assels

Currency forward contracts 8,152 (503,270)

Derivative liabilities
Currency forward contracts (177.061) 6,039,773

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The Series Trst discloses the impact of offsetting assets and liabilities represented in the
statement of financial position to enable users of the financial statement to evaluate the effect or
potential effect of nefting arrangements on s financial position for recognised assets and
liabilities. These recognised assets and liabilities are financial instruments and derivative
ngruments that are either subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement or meet the following right of setoff criteria: the amounts owed by the Series Trust to
another party are determinable. the Series Trust has the right to set off the amounts owed with the
amonnts owed by the other party, the Series Trust intends to set off, and the Series Trost’s right of
setoff is enforceable at law.
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MNotes to financial statements (continued)
5 Fair value measurements (continued)

Offvetiing financial assets and financial Habilitfes (contined)

As of August 31, 2023, the Series Trust holds financial ingtruments and denvative instruments
that are eligible for offset in the statement of financial position and are subject to a master netting
arrangement. The master netting, arrangement allows the counterparty to net any collateral held on
behalf of the Series Trust or liabilities or payment obligation of the counterparty against any
liabilities or payment obligations of Series Trust to the counterparty.

Financial assets and liabilities subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
agreements as at August 31, 2023 are as follows;

Gross amounts of Related amounts not set off in the statement
recognised financial of linandial posilon
assets presented in
the statement of Financial Cash collateral
financial position instruments (a) received(a) Met amount
(b}
LISD LUSD USD USD
Derivative assets
Currency forward
contracis
The Bank of New
York Mellon 6,586 (6,586) - -
Total 6,586 (6,586) : s
Gross amounts of Related amounts not set off in the statement
recognised financial of finandial positon
liabilities presented
in the statement of Financial Cash collateral
financial position instruments (a) pledgedia) Net amount
(b}
USD USD UsD USD
Derivative liabilities
Currency forward
contracts
The Bank of New
York Mellon (68,968) 6,586 - (62,382)
Total (68,968) 6,586 - (62,382)

@y These amounts are limited to the derivative asset or liabilities balances and accordingly do not
include any excess collateral received or pledged.

%) These amounts presented in the statement of financial position are not netted off and
consequently the gross value equals the net value.
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MNotes to financial statements (continued)
5 Fair value measurements (continued)

Offvetiing financial assets and financial Habilitffes (contined)

Financial asseis and liabilities subject to enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
agreements as at August 31, 2022 are as follow:

Gross amounts of Related amounts not set off in the statement
recognised financial of financial positon
assets presented in
the statement of Financial Cash collateral
flinancial position instruments (a) received(a) Net amount
(b}
USD USD UsSD LS
Derivative assets
Currency forward
contracts
The Bank of New
York Mellon 8152 (8,152) - -
Total 8,152 (8,152) - -
Gross amounts of BRelated amounts not set off in the statement
recognised financial of financial positon
liabilities presented
in the statement of Financial Cash collateral
financial position instruments (a) pledged(a) MNet amount
(b)
LISD LSD USD USD
Derivative liabilites
Currency forward
contracts
The Bank of New
York Mellon (1770610 8152 - (168,909)
Total (177,061) 8,152 - (168,909)

iy These amounts are limited to the derivative asset or liabilities balances and accordingly do
nol include any excess collateral received or pledged.

) These amounts presented in the satement of financial position are not netted off and
consequently the gross value equals the net value,
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&  Net income from financial instruments at FVTPL

Fimane ial statenients
Awgust 31, 2023

Met (loss}/ income from financial instruments at FVTPL consists of the following:

For the year For the year
ended August 31,  ended August 31,
2023 2022
usD UsD
Interest income 985,018 1,047,595
Met realised loss on debt instruments at fair value through
profit or loss (1,309.957) (89,234)
Met unrealised income/{loss) on debt instruments at fair
value through profit or loss 1,173,214 (164.637)
Met realised loss on derivative financial instrument at fair
valug through profit or loss (658,813 (1,643,966)
Net unrealised income{ loss) on derivative
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 106,527 (207,515)
MNet gain/(loss) from flinancial instruments at FVTPL 295,989 (1,057.757)

MNet assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units

The movements in the number of units issued and fully paid are as follows:

JPY Semi-Anmual

USD Semi-Annual

Distribution Class Distribution Class

{units) {units)

Balance at August 31, 2022 83,267.752 484,069 823
= of redeesmable units - -
Redemption of redeemable units (19.407.301) (29.852.442)
Balance at August 31, 2023 B3,860.451 454,217.381

Issued and Tully paid

Balance at August 31, 2021
Izue of redeemable units
Redemption of redeemable units
Balance at August 31, 2022

—_—

JPY Semi-Annual

USD Semi-Annual

Distribution Class Distribution Class
{units) {units)
115580403 786,598,924
2435724 9 460738
(34,748.375) (312,289.839)
£3,267.752 484,069,823
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MNotes to financial statements (continued)
7 Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units ( continued)

In respect of the USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units for the initial offer period, the
minimum initial subscription is 10,000 units and thereafter in further one unit increments. For
subsequent subscriptions the minimum initial subscription is USD 100,000 and thereafter in
further USD 0.01 increments.

In respect of the JPY Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units for the initial offer period, the
minimum initial subscription is 1,000 units and thereafter in further one unit increments. For
subsequent subscriptions the minimum initial subscription is JPY 10,000,000 and thereafter in
further JPY 1 increments.

The issue price is USD 10.00 per unit in respect of USD Semi-Annual Distribution Class Units
and JPY 10,000 per unit in respect of the JPY Semi-Annual Distribwtion Class Units,

After the imitial issue of unils, an eligible investor may subscribe for units on any subsequent
subscription day at the relevant subscription price. The subscription price shall be, in respect of
each unil purchased of a class of units on any dealing day, an amount equal to the net asset value
per unit of such class of units as at the valuation point on the valuation day immediately preceding
such dealing day,

Investors wishing to submit units of a class of units for repurchase on a repurchase day must
submit a repurchase notice to the Administrator by no later than 6.00 pm. (Tokyo time) on the
repurchase notice day which immediately precedes such repurchase day or such other time or
times on such day or days as the Manager may, in its sole discretion, determine.

A repurchase day shall be the third business day of each month on which no Series Trust
termination disruption event occurs and/or such other day or days as the Manager may from time
Lo time determine in respect of the Series Trust or a class of units.

The repurchase notice day shall be the 10th calendar day of each month, or, if such day is not a
business day, the immediately following business day, or such other date or dates as the Manager

may determine.

Unitholders will be able to receive an amount in respect of each unil of a class of umis
repurchased on any repurchase day prior to the final repurchase day equal to the net asset valne
per unit of such class of units calculated as at the valuation point on the valuation day
immediately preceding such repurchase day as may be adjusted pursuant to the swing pricing
adjustment.

In the event that repurchase notices representing 10% or more of all issued urats of a class of unis
have been received or the Manager and Trustee detenmine that the iquidation of the investmenis
of the Series Trust would not be practicable or would be prejudicial to unitholders, the Manager,
in consultation with the Trustee, may elect to postpone a mnitholder’s repurchase, in whole or in
part, in such manner as the Manager may determine.

36

137/217



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Tokio Marime CAT Bond Fund
Fimane ial statenients

August 31, 3023
MNotes to financial statements (continued)
7 Net assets attributable to the holder of redeemable units ( continued)

Disiributions

The Manager may, following consultation with the Imvestment Manager, detemmine that
digtributions be payable in respect of each class of units on a semi-annual basis on each
dignibution declaration date, taking into account factors including but not limited to the net
investment income, net realised and unrealised capital gains and capital attributable to the relevant
class of units and received during the relevant disiribution period.

Distributions will be made to those persons shown as the registered holders of units on the
distribution record day immediately preceding such distribution declaration date. The Manager
may, following consultation with the Investment Manager, where it deems appropriate, elect tha
a distnbution be paid in whole or in part out of investment principal attributable to the units (and
which may also be in excess of any capital gain) over a distribution period, where it deems that
the amount of net investment income, net realised and unrealised capital gains and capital
attributable to the relevant class of units received during the relevant distribution period to be
insufficient of itself to fimd that semi-anmual distribution.

The Manager may also elect that a semi-annual distribution is not payable in respect of units for a
relevant distribution periodl, notwithstanding its option to use the investment principal attributable
to the units. Circumstances where the Managzer may make such an election, include bt are not
limited to where it determines in its sole discretion thai application of the Series Trmust's
investment objectives and policies have generated a negative performance over the previous six
monihs or have underperformed to the extent that the Manager deems, following consultation
with the Investment Manager, il appropriate to make such an election.

Upon the termination of the Series Trust, the Trostee will distribute to the existing unitholders in
proportion to the wnits held by them, all cash proceeds derived from the realization of the assets of
the Series Trust. The Trustee may retain the necessary cash proceeds for provision for all costs,
debis, liabilities, charges, expenses, claims and demands properly incwred or made by the Trustee
and whether or not incurred or made in connection with or arising out of the termination.

During the year ended August 31, 2023, there were distributions of USD 390,358 (2022
USD 5774407 1o the holders of redeemable units,

3 Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other pany or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.

Credit Suisse International acts in capacity as Fee Agent of the Series Trust, and represenis a
related party by virtue of its ability to exercize significant influence and by virue of common
ownership by their ultimate parent company, Credit Suisse Group AG. The Fee Agent is entitled
to receive a Fee Agent fee of 0.12% per annum of the net asset value accrued on a daily basis and
calculated as at each valuation day out of the assets of the Series Trust. Total Fee Agent fee for
the vear amounted to USD 10,989 (2022: USD 19426) with USD 1,898 (2022: USD 2,769)
outstanding accrued fees payable to the Fee Agent at the end of the year.

The Manager is a related party by virtue of its power to issue units under the Series Trust Deed
and by virtue of common ownership by the ultimate parent company, Credit Suisse Group AG.

The Manager is entitled to receive out of the fee agent fee a management fee of USD 5,000 per
annum payable monthly in arrears, paid by the Fee Agent.
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MNotes to financial statements (continued)

8 Related party transactions (continued)

The Investment Manager is a related party by vintue of its responsibility for the discretionary day-
to-day investment decision-making responsibility over the Sub-Advised Porfolio and the
management of the Currency Forwards; which is delegated by the Manager by the terms of the
Investment Management Agreement. The Investment Manager is entitled to receive a fee of
0.70% per annum of the net asset value accrued on a daily basis, calculated as at each valuation
day and payable quarterly in arrears owl of the assets of the Series Trust. Total Investment
Manager fee for the vear amounted to USD 64,072 (2022; USD 113,333) with USD 11.073
(2022: USD 16,152) outstanding accrued fees payable to the Investment Manager at the end of the
year,

The Sub-Investment Manager is a related party by vinue of its responsibility for the day-to-day
investment decision-making over the Sub-Advised Portfolio; which is further delegated by the
Investment Manager by the terms of the Sub-Investment Management Agreement. The Sub-
Investment Manager is entitled to receive a fee of 0.50% per anmum of the net asset value accrued
on a daily basis, calculated om each valuation day and paid by the Investment Manager out of the
mvestmen! manager fees. Total Sub-Investment Manager fee for the year amounted to USD
45,766 (2022: USD 80,952) with USD 7.909 (2022: USD 11.,537) outstanding accrued fees
pavable to the Sub-Investment Manager at the end of the year.

The Trstee is a related party by virtue its affiliation with the Series Trust due (o iis possession of
complete authority over the operations and management of the Series Trust. The Trustee is
entitled to receive a fixed annual fee of USD 10,000 per annum payable annually in advance ol
of the assets of the Senes Trust. The Trustee 15 also reimbursed oul of the assets of the Senes
Trust for all ont-of-pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the performance of its duties,

Below table present breakup of accred expenses :

Accrued Expenses Amount Amount

UsSD UsD

2023 2022
Accrued Audit Fee 27,940 26,890
Accrued Investment Management Fee 11,073 16,152
Accrued Administration Fee 11,041 11,041
Accrued Trudees Fee - 6,658
Accmued Distribution Fee 14,152 6,436
Accrued Share Class Charge 1308 3308
Accrued Fee Agent Fee 1,808 2,769
Accrued Costody Fee 2,030 2,039
Accrued Transfer Agent Fixed Expense 1,427 1,427
Acerued Agent Member Company Fee 1,179 536
Total 74,147 77,346
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MNotes to financial statements (continued)

9 Subsequent events

Subsequent to August 31, 2023, and as al Wovember 30, 2023, the Seres Trust has no
subscriptions and recorded repurchases of USD 566,089 and distributions U SD 554,018

In preparing these financial statements, management has evaluated and disclosed all matenal
subsequent events up to Novermnber 30, 2023, which is the date that the financial statements were
available for issue.
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2023 12
12,637,091.31 1,792,318,660
4,264,884.59 604,888,581
8,372,206.72 1,187,430,079
54,306.245
454,217.381

9,694

10.21 1,448
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2023 12

1,696,763,986
9,579,491

13 75,944,366
74,151,668,804
1,409,580,626
23 152,329,776,470
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2021 2021 12 31 2022 2022
12 31
22 38
59 131
23 103
2023 12 29
141.83
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2022 2021
UsD UsD
14,396 2,042 1,541 219
14,396 2,042 1,541 219
14,396 2,042 1,541 219
205,000 29,075 210,000 29,784
58 8 4 1
219,454 31,125 211,545 30,003
(112,703) (15,985) (111,758) (15,851)
106,751 15,140 99,787 14,153
106,751 15,140 99,787 14,153
106,751 15,140 99,787 14,153
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2022 12 31

2022 2021

uSsD usD
9 1,984,033 281,395 1,759,688 249,577
10 205,864 29,198 210,863 29,907
2,189,897 310,593 1,970,551 279,483
10 336,526 47,729 223,931 31,760
336,526 47,729 223,931 31,760
11 735,000 104,245 735,000 104,245
1,118,371 158,619 1,011,620 143,478
1,853,371 262,864 1,746,620 247,723
2,189,897 310,593 1,970,551 279,483

2023 15
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2022 12 31
uSsD usD usD
2022
735,000 104,245 1,011,620 143,478 1,746,620 247,723
106,751 15,140 106,751 15,140
12 31 735,000 104,245 1,118,371 158,619 1,853,371 262,864
2021
735,000 104,245 911,833 129,325 1,646,833 233,570
99,787 14,153 99,787 14,153

12 31 735,000 104,245 1,011,620 143,478 1,746,620 247,723
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2022 12 31
2022 2021

usp usD
106,751 15,140 99,787 14,153
4 (14,396) (2,042) (1,541) (219)
92,355 13,099 98,246 13,934
4,999 709 10,107 1,433
4,999 709 10,107 1,433
112,595 15,969 5,998 851
112,595 15,969 5,998 851
4 14,396 2,042 1,541 219
224,345 31,819 115,892 16,437
224,345 31,819 115,892 16,437
9 1,759,688 249,577 1,643,796 233,140
1,984,033 281,395 1,759,688 249,577
9 1,984,033 281,395 1,759,688 249,577

1,984,033 281,395 1,759,688 249,577
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2022 2021
14,396 1,541
14,396 1,541

2022 2021
205,000 210,000
205,000 210,000

2022 2021
(50) 1)
(6,478) (5,272)
(106,175) (106, 485)
(112,703) (111,758)

2039 10 10
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2022

2022 2021

1,984,033 1,759,688

1,984,033 1,759,688
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2022 2021

205,864 210,863

205,864 210,863

2022 2021

336,526 223,931

336,526 223,931
2022 2021

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
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2022

2022 12 31 2021 12 31
205,864 205,864 210,863 210,863
205,864 205,864 210,863 210,863
336,526 336,526 223,931 223,931
735,000 735,000 735,000 735,000
1,071,526 1,071,526 958,931 958,931
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
205,000 205,000 210,000 210,000
205,000 205,000 210,000 210,000
2022 2021
106,175 106,485
106,175 106,485
12 31
2023 12
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15 2022 12 31
2022 12 31
16
2023 19 2023 12
2023 12
17

2023 15
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Statement of Income Tor the year ended 31 December 2022

uso ‘:Eh'::l 2022 2021
Dl = - S TR e

- af wiich inferas! incoma from instruments at

amartiead cost 14,306 1,54
Total inkerest incoms 4 14,356 1.541
Serveofesipcome 5 205000 210,000
CHher reveoes T A T R I T T &
Total revenues 218,454 211,545
General, adminstraive and other cperabing expenses | & (12703 {111,768
Operating profit before allowance and taxation 106,751 94,787
Frefit bafora tax 106,751 99,787
income fax expenss TTTTEA R e et 7 - e
Profit after ot 106,751 949,787

The accompanying rotes fomm an integral part of these finandcal stalements.

162/217



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDo00oo00Do00DoO0Ooo(ELs389)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Croci Susmie Marapement {Cameman) Limiad
Firanoal stidecnsnds &y S year encied 37 Diacember 2077

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2022

uso “:"h::* 2022 2021
Assals

Cash and due from banks 2] 1,684 033 1,750,688
Other assets 10 205,864 210,863
Total assets 2,189,897 1,870,551
Liabilities

Other iabfities 10 336,526 223,531
Total liabilities 336,526 223,931
Sharehalders” equity |
Share capital 1 735,000 735,000
Rebiinad slrings B 1118371 1.011,620
Total shareholders’ equity 1,853,371 1,746,620
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 2,189,897 1,870,551

Bporoved and authorsed for issue by the board of directors on 15 June 2003
)
)
} Darecter
)
)

Nicolas PPVt

prectar (e i) Limited

Credit SUISYE

The accomparying nates form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Staterment of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2022

Shane caplal Retamned Toral
uso eamings
R R e e e
BalanceatiJanuary 735000 1,011,620  1,746620
Frolit for the year =~ 105751 108751
Balance at 31 Decembar 735,000 1,118,371 1,853,371
2021
Balanceatilanwary 735000 911,833 1648833
Profit for theyeas " T gy gaet
Balance at 31 December 735,000 1,011,620 1,748,620

The ascomaaniing noles fam an integral part of thess finandal slatermants.
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2022

usD ‘m 2022 2021
Cash llows from operaling aclivities

Prefit belone tax b the pemed 106,751 69,787
Adiustments to reconcile net profit to net cash

generated from operating activ

Nen-cash tems ncluded in nel profit before tax

and other adjusiments:

[Interast income A s (4,386 (1547
Cash generated from operating activiies before

changes in oparating asseis and liabilities 92,365 98,248
Net decrease in operaling assels:

CHher assets ST T T agmeT Twanw
et decrease in operating assets 4,995 10,107
Netincrease In operating Rebilitles:
(hher kacilties 110 588 5,008
Hatincresss inoperating Rabiies: . . 112685 5908
Interest income meceived 4 14,396 1,541
Net cash generated from operating activity 224,345 115,882
Mel increase in cash and eash equivalents 224,348 115,862
Cach and cash aquivalanis ai the beginning of year 9 1,759,688 | 543, TOE
Cash ond cash equivalenls al the end of year 1,964,033 1,759,688
Cash ard dua from banks 9 1,584,033 L, 755, 6o
Cash nnd cash equivalents al the end of year 1,984,033 1,759,688

The accomeanying notes toern an integral part of these linancial stedemants,
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Motes to the financial statements
1. Principal activities

Credit Sumse Maragement (Cammy) Lirked (Ihe “Compam™) s incarpoiaded in the Caenan [sands
with Emiked leblfty, The Comgany's pincipel activites are the crsation of rusis and the administration
and managerment of assels n bests. The Company's registered office & ofo Maples Corporale
Sarvices Lirided, R0, Box 308 , Ugland House, Gand Capman KY'1-1104, Cayrran [gands,

2.  Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These fnancil slalemenls heve been prepared in accordance with el appicable Infemational
Financia! Repoding Standards (MIFRSs"), which colleclike ferm includas all applicable individual
Intemelional Finenclel Repering Standards, Infermetionsl Accounling Standards (14357} and
Interpretations msued by Inlemational Accounling Standards Scard ("lASET). A summary of the
siqnificant accourting palices adopted by the Company is sef out below.

{b) Basis of preparaticn of the financial statements
Tieee measurerment basis ussd in the preparation of the financal slabemenls is the historcal cost basis,

The peeparation of financial staterments n conforify with IFRSS requines maragerment 10 make
Judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of poices and reported amounts
of assets, liabllities, income and expenses. The estirmates and assockaied assumztions are based on
historica' experience and varous other factors that ame beleved w0 be reasonzblz wnder the
clrzumstances, the resyks of which fom the basls of making the judgements about camying valies of
assels and Febiliies {hal are nol readily apoarent from olher sources. Aclual resulls mey differ from
thess eshmates.

The astimates and undarlying assumptions am redeswed on an ongoing basiz, Revisions to acoounting
eslimates ars recognized in the periad in which the estimale Is revised F the revision affects only that
percd, or in the perod of the revision and fulure periods | the mewvislon afects both currant and future
padiods.

Goeing Concam

On 18 March 2023, Credt Sumgs Group AG and UBS Group AG anferad mio an agresmant and
glan of menger (the merger”), which was complated on 12 Jure 2003, From 12 June 2023, the
Company = 2 contolicatad subsidiany of LBS Group AG, and as such the fiture cpartions and
financial peromanze of the Company may be imgacted as a resut of the merger and the impact Is
yet to be determined. This matter indicates thal a material unceriainty exdsts thad may cast significant
dewbt on the Company's adlity 1o continue as 2 going concem. The Directors have considersd the
fulbure tquidity and cash fiows of the Company in the coming twelwe months from 31 Decamber 2022
{"lre next twelve months®) and concluded that the Company Is expected o have sufficlent woring
capilal to mee! ils lnancial obligelions as &nd when they Tl due to conlinue aperating the Company
during the nexl twabke months. Accosdingly, the Direclors consider thal i is eppropatate to stil prepare
the 9002 francal slalemenls on & going concem basis,
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2. Significant Acecunting Pelicles (cominuad)
() Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due from banks comprise cash at bank and on hand with banks, and short-term, highly
licaed irrrestments thel are readly comertible into known amownts of cash and which are subjecl ta an
insignificant risk of changes in walue, having been within thres months of melunty al ecquisilion,

{d) Foreign currency

Tiwe Compary's Tenclional and presentalicn curency is Uniled States Collers (USD). Foreign
currency transacions during the year are tramslated into USD at the forcign exchange ates ruling ol
the tensadlion dates. Monetery assals and fedlites denominated in forelgn currencies are Irenglaled
into USD &l the foreign exchange mies wing at the end of the reporting peried. Exchenge gaing and
losses are recogsed in the profit or loss,

Mon-monetary assats and labilites thal ars measured in terms of historical cost in a foralgn currency
are transiabed into USE ushyg the fomsign ecchange rates rling at the transaction dates. Nore
manataty assets and ablffes denominated in forign currancies that are slated ol fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates niding at the dates the falr value was determined. Forcign
currency differences adsing on retranslation are recogrised in profil or loss,

{e) Other assebs

(iher assets are initialy recognised a2l far value and frecealior siated ot amorised cost less
Expeciod Crocit Loss (ECLT) (refer to Mote i), emcopt where the recebabies are interost-froe
nans made to related parbies wilhout any fxed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immadenid, In such cases, the recsivalies are stated of cost kess Inpainment for bed and doubiiul
datls.

(f) Provisions and contingent liabililies

Proviskens are recogrised for labitiss of uncertain fiming or amount when the Company has a lagal
or consbroctive obligation ansing a5 a result of & past event, it is probable that an cutfiow of econemic
benefits wil be reguired to setike the chligation and a refiable estmate cash be mads. Whears the ime
valse of money s maledal, proviskars ane staled at the preserd value of the axpenditure axpecied jo
setthe the obigaton.

Wynane it is not crobable that an cutflow of economic benalits wil be required, or the amourt cannol
ba artmales refiably the obigabion is disciasad as 3 conbngent Dabiky, unlase the prababilty ol
outfiow of aconomic benafits ks remobe. Possibie chlisations, whose sxstence will anly be corfirmed
by tha occurence o non-occurrense of one of mose future evenls are also disclossd as contrgent
fatities unless the probabiity of sutflow of economis berefss is remade.

() Impairment

Tra carrying amounl of the Company's assats Is reviewed at the end of each reporting peded Lo
defermina whether thers is any ofjective evidence of impaiment. If any such objective evidence
edsts, the assels reccwerabla amount le eslirmaled at the end of each reporiing pedod. An
impairment 055 s recognised whensver the camying amount of an asset exceeds Ks recoverable
amount. Impaiment kesses ane recognised in the profl o lkess.

Undar FRS €, tha impairmant requissments apply primarily 1o (nandal assets measursd at amorised
cast. Tha impairment requirerents are based on a forward=seiing sxpecled aedit loss model by
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (continuad)
(g} Impairment (continued)

moorporating reascnable and supportable forecasts of future economic conditions available &l the
reporting date. This requires considerabla judgement sver how changes In eccromic faclors alfect
ECLs, which is determined on a probabiify-waichtes bacis,

(h} Revenue recognition

Provided that & is probable that the sconomic berefits will figw to the Comparny and the revenus and
costs, if applcable, can ba resscoad relably, sendce fee incoma (s recognized in profit or lass when
the investment managemant service is provided,

(i} Expenses
All expenses are recogrisad in predil and loss on an accnual basis.
(i} Relatad partias

For the purposes of these financial statements, & pary i3 considarsd to be méated o the Company if:
{a} A person, or a clese mermber of Ihal person’s family, & related to the Comeany B that person;
i) has contral or joint contre! over the Compary:
(i} has sgniicant influence gwer the Company; or
i} iz 3 membar of tha key management personnel of fhe Company or the Company's
parsnt.

[B)  An entity is related to the Company f any of the ialowing condiions apples;

)  The eniily and the Company are memberz of the same group [which means that sach
paront, subsdiany and lellow subsidary i relaled Lo The othes).

i} One enfity @5 an associale or joint venture of ihe other endity (or an =ssocate or jon
veniure of a member of & group of which tha olher entity s a mamba),

i) Bolh enlilies ane joint ventures of the sme thicd party,

{7y One enbly is & joird venture of o thid pary and the other entity is an assocate of the
Ihired party:

(] The enliy s a post-amploymant benefit plan for the benefit of emplovees of either the
Company or an entity rafaled to the Caomgany,

0d)  Tre entily s contralled or jolnlly contreled by & person identified in (a).

0dl) A parson dentified in (2100 has significant influsnce over the ently or i a member of the
kery management personnel of the entity {or of & parent of the enlity).

Chse members of the family of 2 person ame lhose family members whe may be spactad o
influence, or ke influerced by, (hal person in thel daalings with the antity,

fk} Standards and Interpretations effective in the current peried

The Company has ncl adopled any new slandards or amendments having material impact on the
tinancil positon, result of opemtions or cash fiows in the cwrent year,
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3. Changes in Accounting Policies

The ASE has issued a number of amendmenis lo (FRSs (et are fisl effeclive for the cumrerd
accourding period of the Cormpany. The adophion of thesa amendments had no materal mpact to the
Company's fnandal position, re=sut of operations or cash flows,

The Comparty has nat agalied arry te standard or inferpeatation that & not yet effective for the
curment acoouniting period (Mote 15).

4. Total Interest Income

USD 2023 2021
Total interest income

Interestincomeon cashand due fromberks 16363 1841
Total interest income 14,39 1,541

All the sbose inberest incoma on nstuments are sl amodised cosl.
5. Service Fee Income

The princical acthiiies of the Company are the creation of frums ang the adminlstraticn and
managerment of assels in trusis,

Revenue represents swestrment management fee incorme eamed Trom felow subsidigny a5 lolows:

UsD 2022 2021
Jotal sarvicefasinooma L lii....

Service fse income B ) WR000 210,000
Toial service fee mcome 205,000 210,000

6. General, Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

usD 2022 0
Ganeral administrative and olher operating expenses _______
L ot TR IS DU e | (
Ausditor remunaration {BATT) (5,279

Total general adminisirative and other operating expenses  (112.703) __ (111.758)

AL of the above expendilures ane payathe to the Comgany's immediale helding compary and ihe
immediate ho'ding cempany setties such cxpendiiures en behadt of the Company.

7. Taxation
Thers ara no taces on income or geins in the Cayman Izlands and tha Company has mecelved an
underaking from the Govemar in Coundl of the Cayrran lelands aeemeting & from all loeal income,

prediis and capital taoes untll 10 October 2038, Accordingly, no provdsion for income taxes is inciuded
in these financial statemsnts,

11
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8  Unconsolidated Structured Entities
Sporgonad unconsokdated struclurad endrias

The Company considers Hself the spansar of a structured entity when ekher tis name appears in the
name of the strectured entity o in prodiucts issuad by f or thers i5 & general axpeciation from fhe
marned that the Company is essocieted with the structured entity or the Company was involved in tho
design ér 561 up of tha stnaclured enlity and has & foim of Imvohement with the siruciuned endity.

Thes Beslow unconsolideled struciuned entities are spansonsd by the Cernpany whane a fred annoal
managemsant fes of USD 5,000 (20017: USD 5.000) is received bul no inflanest s he'd by the
Comgpany as at 31 Decarmbar 2000

ol et Ly SO I i s s e s B e S
Australian High Dividenc Equity Twin Alcha Fund (Fer Qualried Insttutional bwestors Only)

_________________________________________________ o i i,

Ghonal REIT Triple Preanium Fund (For Cualifed Insifutions investars Only)

us th E),'-:. F?‘"T Pramiurn Sund {F_ur_d.;a.;r_h_d Institulional Immsines f.h'll'f:l- e

S Prefemed REIT Income Fund (Par Quakied Inskiutional Ivestors Onby) ...
apan Equily Frarium Fund (Foe Quadiied Inslilonal nvestors Only)

s, il v o ey B e T e R - e g e e, T T

WE/MYAM US RE'T Income Fund (For Oustilied Instiluiional investors Crl)

___________________________ Gl i iy e i e o i o i i

etvn Braplian Resl Sond £ (For Cuatlod nstivfona imestors O
Nissay Japan Equly Aclive Fund (For Qua'fied Instihtional nvesions Cnly)

Shinse: World Wesp Stable Type (For Quaified Institutional Ivestors Only)

US Muvcipal Bond Fund
TooMarne CAT Sond Fund

12
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8  Unconsalidaled Structured Entities (continued)

58| Pictet Asia Hi-Tech "-l'm"urel'uui

ALID Short Temm Band Fund

Preanbimi Cal!'_.l S!m Fuﬂd

E@Zﬁf'wﬂk@ F-thw Eiui{"idflisii ici@']@?@@r% T

HOLT Euro Egy 15.' Fromiem Fund I:Far Clugitied 'm'.ihr.lmn, irrecshons Drtr}f'
*Ihe funds were ferrinated during P0ED,

The Compary has ~ot prosided Enancial er othar supzort to unconsofidated stucturad entiies that it
was nol contraciually required 1o peovide,

The Comgany does el currenlly hewe e indlention o predde Tnancal or otber support o
unconstidaled stnsctued entibes that it i nol contiactually requaed bs pirwida.

9. Cash and Due from Banks

Cach and cash equmealants compra:

UsD 2022 2021
Cash and due frorm banks

Coshanddmfrombanks _. %6403 17500663
Total cash and due from banks: 1,984,033 1,759,688

10. Other Assets and Other Liabilities

usp 2002 2021
Other asssts

Irdeses! and leos recehmbie 5,864 210,853
Total other assats 205,864 210,863
USD 2022 2021
Othar liabilities

Inbsrest and fees payahle 236,509 203931
Tetal ather liabilitiss 336,526 223.931

13
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11. Share Capital
(@) Authorised and lssued share capital

2022 2021
Ma. of uso Ne. of uso
shares shares
Authorised:
Ondinary shares of USD | each 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000.000 1,000,000
lssued and fully paid up: _
Orceary shares TAEO00 V3000 2 TAS000  ¥AB000

Tia hokiess of erdinary shares am entiled to receive dhidends as deciared from fime 1o tme and ame
anfitied to one vote per shase at peneral meetings of the Campary, Al orginary shanes rank equaly
with regard fo the Company's residual aseets,

{b) Capital management

Thi Company's primary ebjsctes when managing capital ars to safequard the Compary's ability 1o
conlinus as a going concern &0 that it can continue to previde refums 4o sharshoiders, by pricing
sandcas commansuately with the leval of risk and by securng access fo finance at 2 reasonabie
cast As the Company is part of a larger group, the Company's sourges of additional capilel and
policies Tor distioution of mocess capttal may also be affecled by the group's cepétal management
ojectves. The Comparry defines “capital’ as ncluding all companents of equity.

The Company's capilal structure is mgulady reviawad and managed with dus regard o the capisl
ranigenenl paclices of the group lo which the Company belongs, Adjustments am mada 1o fha
capital slruciure in ight of changes in economic condiinns alfecting the Company or the group, to
the exdlent that thess do nol conlict wilh the disctars’ frhuciasy duties tovards e Comparst

The Company was not subject to extemally impogsed capital requirerrents in the current period,
12.  Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

Exposure fo credit, iquidty, nteres! mls and foreign clamency risks arsas n tha normal course of the
Company's businazs, Thess risks are managed by the Company's finandal management podicies and
practicas described bebow,

(@) Credt sk

The Comprny's cradil 4% is prirmarily attibutable o amoents dee {rom group companies and cash at
bank, Credif sk = defined as rsk that cne party te a financial nstrument will cause a financlal loss b
anpthar party by failing 1o dischage an obigation, Management regulady menftors its risk enposum to
ersure thal ite credit risk s ept 1o 2 minimal feved The madmom sxposuss 10 cradit sk i
nepresanied by the camying amount of each Sinancial assat in the statement of financial position afier
deducting any (mpairnent alowanse,
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412. Financial Risk Management and Fair Yalues (continued)

b Ligulaity risk

The Company's policy is lo regulady monitor its liguidly requirermenls o salisfy 15 contmchual and
reasorably loeseealle obfigalions as they lel due.

At 31 Decamber 2020 ang 2001, all of the Company's linanclal kalilites, whizh inziudes all crediters
and acoruas, ate on demand or undated and are expecisd w be sotled batween three fo beehes
months,

fo) interast rate risk

The Company s ssposed to inlerest refe sk only 1o the extent that it sams bank niemest on cash
and deposits. At 31 December 2022 and S0, a change In Interest rates weould have no direct
materal effact on the carmying value of the recognised assets or labiltas of the Comeany.

(&} Forelan eurrency risk

The Cempany i exposed b foresgn cumency rigk prmarily through certain transactions which gese risa
i payaties fhat are danominated in Hang Keng dollars (HED .

Az the HRD is pegoed to the USD, tre Company considers thal the nsk of movemenis in exchange
rales between US0 and HHXD fa ke insigniticant.

{8) Fair valuas

Tha carying amounts of the Comzany's fnancial nstruments carvied af cost or amortised cost are not
matedally differant freem their fair waive as ot 31 December 2022 and 2021,

13.  Material Related Parly Transactions

In gddificon 40 lhe ranseclons and bafances disclosed skewhers in he financal slalements, the
Cemparny artarad inlo the foliowing malenial related pary ransactions.

(a) Related party balance sheel transactions

31 Decombaer 2022 31 Decamber 2021

Farent Fallow Tetal Parent Fatlow Takal
Group Group

ush Companias Compankes

Assats

OHher wssets —  ohS0d o0 A = ooEm | olopea

Total assets - 205,864 205,884 — 210,863 210,883

Liabilitims and

Equity =

Ottarfablites =~~~ 336506 = - dEspun s - L

Shane capii an, 000 - T, 00 5,000 - Taih, 000

Total liabilites and

sharsholders’

equity 1,071,526 — 1,071,536 958,331 —  85ESM

15
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13.  Matersl Related Party Transactions (continued)

() Related party revenues and expenses

31 December 2022 31 Decamber 2021
Parent Fallow Tokal Farent Fellow Talal
Group Group
uso Companies Coirl panties
Ravenues
Sersice fes ncome — SCED0D0 DOSDO0 0 - 210000 210,000
Total revenuas - 205,000 205,000 =5 210,000 210,000

{c) Remuneratien of key management personnel

Remuneration of key managament personmel (USD) 2022 Pk ]
“Bhor-mm amployes tanalis 108,178 108,458
Total Remuneration of ey management personnal 106,175 108,485

14. Parent and Ultimate Helding Company

At 31 Decombar 2062, the immediale parent of tha Company is Credi Suisse (Heng Hong) Limiled,
which is incorporated in Hong Mong and the ulbmale conlrolling patdy of the Company & Credit
Swisse Group AG, which & incorpomaled in Swilseland. Credit Susse Group AG produces financial
slalernents woailsbis for putlic use,

From 12 June 20Z3. the ulimate controling pary of the Company is UBS Group AG, which s
incorparabed 18 Switredand upen completon of the merger with Credit Suisse Group AG (‘e
rmerger) mendened in Mot 2(8),

15. Possible Impact of Amendments, Mew Standards and Interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2022

Cerain rew accounting standards, amendments lo sccounting standards and interprelations hava
besn published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2022 reporting pedods ond have not been
early adoplad by the Compary. Thesa slandands, amandments or intapralations are not axpected to
herer & matedal impact on ihe enlily in the cumen? or lulure repoding pereds and on foresasable
fifure tramsackions.

16. Subseguent Events

As sel oul in Mole Xb), on 19 March 2028, Credit Suisse Group AG and UBS Group AG amiared
Inta an agresment and plan of menger, which was completed on 12 June 2022, From 12 Jure 2083,
the Company Is a consolidated subsidiary of UBS Sroup AG, and as such the fulure operations and
financial performence of the Company may be impactes ag a msult of tre mengar an the mgact i
yat 1o b delerrined,

17. Approval of Financial Statements

The financial slalements were approved for issue by the board of directons of the Comgany on 15
June 023,
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Elian Trustee Cayman Limited

2023 12 100

Intertrust N.V.

The Bank of New York Mellon

2023 11 3,500
2017 30 6,000
7,300
2023 12 405

Credit Suisse International

2023 12 113 6,600
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1990 16

Credit Suisse AG
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1985 12
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2017 7,909
USA
USA 2023 12 50
7,092
2000 100
2017 702
Elian Trustee Cayman Limited
The Bank of New York Mellon,
Singapore Branch
The Bank of New York Mellon
Credit Suisse International
USA
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KPMG LLP

P.O. Box 493

SIX Cricket Square Grand Cayman KY 1-1106 Cayman Islands

Telephone +1 345 949 4800

Fax +1 345 949 7164

Internet www.kpmg.ky

Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee

Opinion

We have audited the financia statements of Tokio Marine CAT Bond Fund (the "Series Trust"), a series-trust of
Credit Suisse Universal Trust (Cayman) Il (the "Trust") which comprise the statement of financial position as at
August 31, 2023, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable units and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Series Trust as at August 31, 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("1FRS").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("1SAS"). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the "Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia
Statements" section of our report. We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) ("IESBA Code") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statementsin the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin accordance with
IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations,

or has no redlistic aternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Series Trust's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee (continued)

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Satements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Series Trust's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

November 30, 2023
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Board of Directors of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited (the “Company™), which are set out on pages 4
to 16, comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022;

the statement of income for the year then ended,;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRSS").

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS’). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants

(including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants
(“IESBA Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the IESBA Code.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)
To the Board of Directors of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw your attention to Note 2(b) to the financial statements, which describes the merger on 12 June 2023 (the
“merger”) between Credit Suisse Group AG (the ultimate parent of the Company before the merger) and UBS Group
AG (the ultimate parent of the Company after the merger), which may have an impact on the Company's future
operations and financia performance and the impact is yet to be determined. This matter indicates that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’' s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements

Our abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with |SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
meateria if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company'sinternal control.
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Independent Auditor's Report (continued)
To the Board of Directors of Credit Suisse Management (Cayman) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Auditor’'s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 15 June 2023
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